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EXPLANATORY FOREWORD

Introduction
These accounts set out the overall financial position of the Chief Constable for Derbyshire, who is
responsible for Derbyshire Constabulary, for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Serving Derbyshire
Derbyshire Constabulary serves an area of more
than 1,000 square miles, and a population around
one million. Derbyshire is renowned for being
hugely diverse. It encompasses the rural areas of
the High Peak, Derbyshire Dales and the Derwent
Valley, a World Heritage Site. These areas attract
a significant amount of tourism throughout the
year. In addition, there are old mining
communities, modern towns and business centres.
It is also home to the vibrant and culturally diverse
city of Derby. There are more than 70 different
languages spoken in Derby.

This is the third year that Accounts have been prepared for the Chief Constable under arrangements
following the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. This Act introduced a significant shift in
the way the Police in England and Wales are governed and held accountable. The main change was to
replace the Derbyshire Police Authority with a Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire (PCC),
known as the ‘Commissioner’ on the 22 November 2012. At the same time the Chief Constable was
established as a separate body with responsibility for Derbyshire Constabulary.
The primary function of the new body headed by the Chief Constable is the exercise of operational
policing duties under the Police Act 1996. The Commissioner’s function is to hold the Chief Constable
to account for the exercise of these duties, thereby securing the maintenance of an efficient and
effective police service in Derbyshire.
For accounting purposes the Commissioner and Chief Constable together are known as the PCC
Group. A separate set of statutory accounts has been published for the Commissioner and PCC Group
to recognise all the financial transactions incurred during 2014/15 for policing in Derbyshire.
This Foreword provides an overview of the new accounting arrangements and outlines the financial
performance of the Chief Constable during 2014/15.
The 2014/15 Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2014/15. The
Accounts reflect the current legislative framework as well as the local arrangements operating in
practice. Key elements of this framework include: 




The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act).
The Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police Service of England and
Wales 2013.
Scheme of Consent between the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
The Financial Handbook of the Commissioner and Chief Constable.
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The Accounts also reflect the second stage of the reforms within the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011, which were introduced in April 2014. The Commissioner is still responsible for
the finances of the whole Group and he controls all land and buildings, liabilities and reserves. The
Commissioner receives all income and funding and makes all the payments for the Group from the
Police Fund. In turn the Chief Constable fulfils his functions under the Act within an annual budget (set
by the Commissioner in consultation with the Chief Constable). A scheme of consent is in operation
between the two bodies to give clarity to the way the two organisations are governed and do business in
the right way, for the right reason and at the right time.

Financial Statements
The financial statements for the Chief Constable required under the 2014/15 Code consist of: -

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing policing services under the direction
of the Chief Constable for the 12 months to 31 March 2015, (as opposed to the overall cost of policing
Derbyshire, which includes the cost of administering the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
(OPCC) and OPCC expenditure on community safety and crime prevention, as shown in the Group
Accounts). The CIES has been prepared by applying the accounting principles set out in the CIPFA
Accounting Code of Practice. The headings used are from CIPFA’s Service Reporting Code of Practice
(SeRCOP) and highlight the financial consequences of the different policing activities in Derbyshire last
year under the direction of the Chief Constable.

Movement in Reserves Statement
This summarises the movements to and from unusable reserves for the year 2014/15, which relate to
post-employment benefits (pensions), benefits payable during employment (untaken leave at the
financial year end) and financing of vehicles and equipment from capital resources. All usable reserves
are held by the Commissioner.

The Balance Sheet
This summarises the financial position of the Chief Constable at 31 March 2015 and sets out any
assets, liabilities and reserves. The net assets of the Chief Constable (assets less liabilities) are
matched by the unusable reserves held by the Chief Constable. These reserves are a product of the
application of the Code, it should be noted that the Chief Constable does not hold usable reserves –
they are all held by the Commissioner.

The Cash Flow Statement
This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Chief Constable during the reporting
period. As all of the Group's cash flows are presented in the Commissioner’s Accounts this statement
simply shows the net surplus on provision of services adjusted for non-cash movements.

Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principals, conventions, rules and practices that are applied in
preparing and presenting the annual accounts. These accounts reflect the position after the second
phase of transition under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.

Other Contents
In addition to the financial statements, the Annual Accounts include a Statement of Responsibilities for
the Accounts and information on the Police Officer Pension Fund (providing statements for pension fund
income and expenditure, assets and liabilities).
An Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is included within this Statement of Accounts. The statement
is a statutory document which explains the governance processes and procedures in place to enable
Derbyshire Constabulary to carry out its functions effectively. Following the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011 the Chief Constable is required to produce his own AGS each year which must
accompany the Chief Constable’s Statement of Accounts.
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Financial Report
Revenue Budget
The outturn position achieved for 2014/15, as set out below, shows earlier than anticipated delivery of
savings plans for the period 2015/16 to 2019/20. These savings initiatives have been set during a time
of unprecedented austerity and considerable uncertainty. This has put Derbyshire Police in a strong
financial position and in particular enabled the Commissioner to build up reserves to help manage future
budget cuts and austerity.
A revenue budget for 2014/15 was set at £164.709 million, a decrease of 1.5% over 2013/14. The
funding of the £164.709 million comprised central government formula funding (Police Specific Grant,
Localising Council Tax Support Grant and Revenue Support Grant (RSG)) of £114.512m, and Council
Tax of £50.197m. A total of £22.264m funding was also received from the Home Office to cover the
police pension fund deficit for the year.
The consequential Council Tax for an average band D dwelling was £170.22, as the Commissioner
decided to increase Council Tax for 2014/15 by 1.96% (£3.27).

Performance
Finance
Net expenditure incurred against the Revenue Budget for the Chief Constable and the Group amounted
to some £162.415m, which allowed £2.294m to be added to reserves at the end of the year. Part of this
will be set aside in a carry forward reserve to meet future commitments, while the remainder will be
available to help address future budget pressures.
The increase to reserves reflects the success of the measures implemented to address the continuing
significant savings and demands on the Constabulary’s budget. However, this increase is expected only
to be temporary as reserves will be needed to bridge the budget gap projected from 2015/16 onwards.
The positive 2014/15 outturn position has been achieved with a much smaller organisation. The
Constabulary has gone through immense change, which has resulted in 400 officers and staff leaving
over the past five years. Despite the organisational change and the financial pressures the
Constabulary, working with its partner agencies has continued to maintain performance. Recorded crime
in Derbyshire has fallen again following a slight increase in offences during 2013/14. The end-of-year
figures show that crime fell by 1.5 per cent compared to 2013/14, dropping from 52,479 to 51,687. This
means there were 792 fewer victims of crime.
The table below is presented in a subjective analysis format, which is used for internal reporting
purposes.
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Budget Heading

Revised Budget
£

Outturn
£

Over/ (Under)spend

£

Police Officer Pay & On Costs

90,129,700

90,070,157

(59,543)

Police Staff Pay & On Costs

35,313,500

35,322,943

9,443

481,800

1,130,086

648,286

Police Pensions

3,310,000

2,961,224

(348,776)

Premises

8,282,300

8,226,920

(55,380)

Transport

3,707,200

3,456,529

(250,671)

12,324,000

11,992,976

(331,024)

1,274,900

1,123,184

(151,716)

907,200

905,548

(1,652)

1,052,200

1,051,297

(903)

Government Grants

(2,784,800)

(2,868,516)

(83,716)

General Income

(2,857,900)

(3,228,460)

(370,560)

Regional Units

9,529,300

9,451,858

(77,442)

Other Employee Expenses

Supplies & Services
Agency
Debt Charges
Revenue Contribution to Capital

Interest Receipts

(260,000)

(248,712)

11,288

Contributions to/from Reserves

219,474

227,139

7,665

BCU Fund

344,700

356,168

11,468

Regional and National Policing

97,200

(278,182)

(375,382)

Other Specific Grants

65,400

29,685

(35,715)

759,300

443,920

(315,380)

161,895,474

160,125,764

(1,769,710)

2,813,897

2,289,616

(524,281)

164,709,371

162,415,380

(2,293,991)

Partnerships
Total for the Chief Constable
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Total for Derbyshire Police

Key points to note in respect of individual variations in the table above include: Other Employee Expenses – £0.648m overspend. The majority of the overspend relates to meeting the
cost of the Constabulary’s voluntary redundancy scheme.
Police Pensions – (£0.349m) underspend. A budget was set to cover the cost of 18 officers retiring on
the grounds of ill health during the year, whereas only 14 actually retired. This figure can fluctuate from
year to year depending on the number of applications that are made and more importantly whether they
meet the strict criteria for ill health retirement.
Transport – (£0.251m) underspend. There was an underspend of £0.102m on the purchase of vehicle
fuel, due to the decrease in the price of a litre of petrol and diesel. In addition an underspend of
£0.151m has been made from reduced mileage and travel claims.
Supplies and Services – (£0.331m) underspend. This variance has occurred across a range of budget
headings, which contain both under and over spends. Explanations for the largest variances include: 


Software Maintenance – (£0.191m) underspend. This is made up savings achieved through cost
sharing with other Forces in the East Midlands region and the effects of renegotiating a number of
existing contracts.
General Equipment – (£0.175m) underspend. A general budget is held for replacing equipment.
The underspend has occurred because not the entire budget was required.
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Interpreters – (£0.073m) underspend. This service is difficult to budget for as spend is dictated by
demand. There was less of a need to employ the services of interpreters than originally
anticipated.
Handheld Terminals/Blackberrys – (£0.063m) underspend. This underspend reflects the savings
made from the new mobile data units contract that commenced in December 2014.
Tetra Terminal Maintenance – (£0.047m) underspend. This reflects the reduction in cost of the
Offcom Licence and monies that have been withheld from a supplier because of service issues
with a communications link.
Uniforms – £0.058m overspend. This overspend reflects the investment the Constabulary has
made in better quality uniforms.
Professional Fees – £0.073m overspend. This budget covers a wide range of specialist services
the Constabulary has to buy in to support investigations. Demand is difficult predict and has been
greater than anticipated.
Airwave Service Delivery - £0.099m overspend. This overspend relates to charges for service
being backdated by the Home Office from January 2013.
PFI Professional Fees - £0.162m overspend. The represents specialist services employed to
investigate the possibility of renegotiating the PFI contracts, with the aim of reducing cost. External
funding received from the Home Office has contributed to the overall cost of this work.

Agency costs – (£0.151m) underspend. This represents a further savings on Forensic Services costs.
As always the actual outturn is influenced by the occurrence of major incidents that have occurred
during the year.
Income – (£0.370m) additional generated. Income generation is very difficult to estimate, therefore
budgets are usually pessimistic. The main areas where more income has been generated than
anticipated include: 

Proceed of Crime Act (POCA)

£0.039m



Sale of Vehicles

£0.057m



Local Authority Contributions

£0.091m



Costs Recovered

£0.056m



Football Matches

£0.047m



Mast Rental

£0.063m

Regional Collaboration – (£0.077m) underspend. This covers areas where some cost sharing has taken
place across the East Midland Regions during 2014/15. This includes the ‘officers in kind’ contributed to
the already existing EM Special Operations Unit.
Partnerships – (£0.315m) underspend. The underspend reflects the timing of the delivery of projects for
which orders have been placed but will not be spent until next year.
Regional and National Policing – (£0.375m) underspend. The majority of this underspend relates to
external funding held on behalf of the national POCA scheme, administered in part by Derbyshire.

Crime
The end-of-year figures show that crime fell by 1.5 per cent compared to 2013/14, dropping from 52,479
to 51,687. This means there were 792 fewer victims of crime.
House burglaries fell by 6.6 per cent from 2,906 to 2,714 while robbery fell by just over 18 per cent from
629 to 515. There has been a rise in violent crimes, reflecting an increasing trend nationally. In
Derbyshire, this type of crime rose by 9.3 per cent from 9,177 to 10,033. This is made up of 3,939
offences of ‘violence without injury,’ where the victim was not hurt, such as incidents of common assault,
stalking and making threats.
Shoplifting rose by 6.9 per cent, increasing from 5,778 to 6,176 crimes. This type of theft has risen over
the last five years and in 2014/15, represented 12 per cent of all crimes reported to Derbyshire Police.
Just over one in every eight crimes reported to the force was an offence of shoplifting. Although
shoplifting has increased again, this is the first year that the trend has begun to slow.
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Although the reduction in crimes such as burglary and robbery is good the 52,000 crimes do not
represent the full range of offending in the county. Recorded crime is generally what the public come
forward and tell us about and is only a part of the crimes investigated in Derbyshire. The figures don’t
properly reflect the more complex offences dealt with, such as drug trafficking, slavery, child abuse and
child grooming and sexual exploitation.
Alongside the reduction in crime, Derbyshire residents have maintained a high level of confidence in the
Constabulary. In the latest information published by the Crime Survey of England and Wales, 77 per
cent of people asked said that they had confidence in the county’s police
The Constabulary continually work to improve levels of public confidence and satisfaction and our aim is
to always provide the best service possible within the resources we have available. We have lost more
than 500 officers and staff and will lose the same again over the next four years of austerity and it is
increasingly difficult to service all the demands we face. Recent work by the College of Policing shows
that less than 20 per cent of police time is spent ‘fighting and responding to crime’ and the vast other
demands we have to deal with are sometimes just as important and ask a lot of our officers and staff.

Outlook for 2015/16 and key challenges
The Constabulary’s fifth budget to be set in this period of austerity came into effect on 1 April 2015.
During this time Derbyshire Constabulary has made some extremely tough choices and has been
absolutely committed to maintain sound finances while delivering an effective policing service to the
public of Derbyshire.
The latest budget continues this approach, but signal that it is getting even harder to both manage
further cuts in spending and still deliver an effective policing service, especially when it means that we
will have fewer resources to deal with the more complex challenges that we face.
The reserves that we have been building up in recent years will play a big role in helping to cushion the
impact of these reductions. They will help us to manage the reduction in our police officer numbers over
the next few years as well as protecting us to some extent from the immediate impact of unpredictable
grant reductions.
Even in a period of significant reductions, reserves are still needed to invest in the future. This is
essential if we are to build an effective and efficient smaller organisation. We will undoubtedly rely more
heavily on IT in the future. It is essential that we invest in up to date systems to equip smaller numbers
of officers and staff to deliver an efficient service.
Our new Headquarters is another major investment that we are making with money set aside in
reserves. This will help us work even more closely with the Fire Service and also save money in the
long term. There is a considerable overlap in the work that we both undertake and closer working will
produce real benefit to the people of Derbyshire.
The next five years are going to be tough and challenging ones for Derbyshire Constabulary. We face
considerable uncertainty around future funding. Our estimated funding gap of £20m presents a major
challenge. We have made a good start to meeting this challenge, but there is still more we may need to
do in later years if we are to completely close our funding gap.
The planned reduction in police officer and staff numbers remains an area of great concern. 80% of our
money is spent on people, which means we cannot avoid these reductions, although we have tried hard
to look at other ways of saving money to avoid even greater reductions.
Our Estate is one of those areas, where we are proposing a significant reduction. Most of the buildings
that we are closing have few officers located within them and are not visited regularly by members of the
public. This does not mean that the public won’t be concerned about their closure but we have had to
prioritise the people who deliver a policing service over the buildings that they operate from.
The savings plans the Constabulary has in place represent an incredible amount of work from officers
and staff across this organisation who have reviewed every aspect of our spending to come up with
workable proposals to deliver a viable policing service. They are not necessarily things that we want to
do but they are things that we know we will have to do to manage within the reduced resources we face.

Pensions
Pension costs are accounted for in accordance with the accounting standard IAS 19. The objectives of
IAS 19 are to ensure that the financial statements: -
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Reflect at fair value the assets and liabilities arising from an employer’s retirement benefit
obligations.
Contain related funding and operating costs of providing retirement benefits to employees that are
recognised in the accounting period in which the benefits are earned.
Contain adequate disclosure of the cost of providing retirement benefits.

IAS 19 costs are not, however, chargeable to Council Tax, and the impact is reversed out by replacing
the IAS 19 figures with the actual cash payments made to the Pension Fund. The actual payments are
shown derived through the Statement of Movement on the General Reserve Balance. The Pensions
Liability in the Balance Sheet reflects the underlying long-term commitments to pay retirement benefits.
The impact of the net pension liability on overall reserves amounts to £1.934m in 2014/15 (2013/14
1.654m). Detailed information on the performance of the Pension Fund is set out in the Core Financial
Statements.

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011
This second stage of the reforms within the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, which
were introduced in April 2014 recognises the proposals as set out by the Commissioner and approved
by the Home Secretary in November 2013 to transfer all police staff, with the exception of those working
within the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, over to the employment of the Chief Constable.
The Chief Constable’s accounts include the pension costs, assets and liabilities for all staff, including
those employed directly by the Commissioner. The scheme assets and liabilities for the two
organisations are pooled, any pro-rata would not be accurate, as valuing the fund uses a number of
assumptions.
The effect of including all pension figures in the accounts of the Chief Constable has no material effect
on the accounts.
The proposal also included for all assets to be transferred to the Chief Constable, with the exception of
the Estate. The Estate is available to the Chief Constable to discharge his responsibilities. The
relationship between the Commissioner and Chief Constable for the Estate is that of a landlord and
tenant, with the Chief Constable responsible for maintenance.

Collaboration
The five police forces in the East Midlands region have been working together for over a decade in
many different areas of operational and non-operational policing.
With each of the five forces now facing significant financial challenges, there is a strong belief in the
East Midlands that collaboration is not only pragmatic but will achieve real results that will enhance the
way the police service in the region does business.
Collaboration is based on three key principles:




Local policing will remain local.
Collaboration in operational and non-operational support services should be sought.
The benefits and costs of working collaboratively will be shared between the five forces.

The vision for collaboration in its most recent three-year plan states:




Productivity will be improved through working together and sharing best practice, increased
interoperability and shared delivery of services. Also through making better use of resources.
Public safety will be improved through the shared delivery of protective services where appropriate,
reducing threat, risk and harm.
Public confidence in the police will be improved through successful delivery and communication of
the productivity and public safety improvements, together with local policing delivery by local police
forces.
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Police collaboration in the East Midlands is the most substantial of its kind in the country and has a
number of significant benefits to police officers, staff and residents right across the region:





Greater resilience.
Increased capability.
Reduced bureaucracy.
Reduced cost.

Derbyshire Police has always engaged actively in a range of collaborative initiatives. It has adopted a
prudent approach to collaboration based on a set of collaboration principles agreed by the Police and
Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. This includes the two key principles that:1.

The Derbyshire Constabulary and PCC will ensure we maximise local savings to address our
immediate and future financial pressures. We are already very efficient and will focus greater
efficiency and on delivering savings at a local level prior to entering into collaborative ventures.

2.

Any future collaboration will be tested against the priorities of the force and the objectives and
manifesto pledges set by the Commissioner within his Police and Crime Plan. Any current and
future collaborative models will be commensurate with risk and not expose Derbyshire to any
greater risk or cost than a local solution.

A breakdown of expenditure incurred is included in the note 7 to the Accounts.
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CHIEF CONSTABLE
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Policies
General Principles
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice (the Code) on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) and the Service
Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities 2014/15 (SeRCOP). The accounting policies contained
in the Code apply International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adapted for the public sector by
the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis using an historic cost convention, modified
to account for the revaluation of certain categories of tangible fixed assets and financial liabilities.
The Accounting Policies below also reflect the powers and responsibilities of the Chief Constable as
designated by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Home Office Financial
Management Code of Practice for the Police Service, England and Wales 2013. The Accounting
policies defined here are consistent with local regulations, local agreement and practice as well as the
PCC Group policies.
The Accounts cover the 12 months to 31 March 2015.

Cost Recognition
All expenditure is paid for by the Commissioner including the wages of police officers and staff and no
actual cash transactions or events take place between the two entities. Costs are however recognised
within the Chief Constable’s Accounts to reflect the financial resources consumed at the request of the
Commissioner and the economic benefit this brings about. For instance an economic benefit is
recognised to reflect the utilisation of the Commissioner owned Estate, which mirrors depreciation of
property.

Accruals of Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made: 



Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.
Expenses in relation to services received (included services provided by employees) are recorded
as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.
Short term compensated absences are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement in the
period in which officers or staff render the service which entitles them to the benefit, not necessarily
when they receive the benefit. The cost of leave earned, but not taken at the end of the financial
year is recognised in the financial statements of the Chief Constable to the extent that staff are
entitled to carry forward a limited amount of leave into the following year.

Exceptional Items
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Chief Constable’s financial
performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, ie in the current and future
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the Chief Constable’s position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
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Employee Benefits
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with IAS19 Employee Benefits. This is a complex accounting
standard but it is based on a simple principle that:
“An organisation should account for employment and post-employment benefits when employees earn
them and the authority is committed to give them, even if the actual giving will be many years into the
future”.
IAS 19 applies to all types of employee benefits paid including benefits payable during employment,
termination benefits and post-employment benefits.

Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They
include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, expenses, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in
the year in which employees render service to the Chief Constable. An accrual is made for the cost of
holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before
the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but then reversed out through the Movement in
Reserves Statement to the Short Term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief Constable to terminate
employment before the normal retirement date or a decision to accept voluntary redundancy and when
the Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an individual or
group or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Post-employment benefits
The main effect of IAS19 in relation to post-employment benefits is the recognition of the net liability and
a pensions reserve in the Balance Sheet and entries in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for movements in the liability relating to the employee pension schemes in which the Chief
Constable participates (with reconciling entries in the Movement in Reserves Statement back to the true
cost of pensions).
IAS19 relies on the recognition of pension’s liabilities (being the retirement benefits promised measured
on an actuarial basis) and assets (being the Chief Constable’s share of investments (if any)).
The Chief Constable participates in two different pension schemes both of which are “defined benefit
schemes” as they are both based on employees earning benefits from years of service.
a) Police Officers
This scheme is unfunded. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police
officers based on final salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions
liabilities.
The funding arrangements for the police officers pension scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Before April
2006 each Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its former officers on a “pay as
you go” basis. From April 2006 there is now an employer’s contribution instead (currently 24.2% of
pensionable salary) which is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The Chief Constable is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the amounts that
must be paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation. This account is shown
on page 45. Officer’s contributions and the employer’s contribution are paid into the pension’s account
from which pension payments are then made. This will be topped up as necessary by the Home Office if
the contributions are insufficient to meet the cost of pension’s payments. Any surplus will be recouped
by the Home Office. Injury awards and ill health retirements will continue to be paid from the Chief
Constable’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The pension fund account does not take account of the obligation to pay pensions and benefits which
fall due after the end of the financial year.
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b) Police Staff and PCSO’s
Police staff and PCSO’s, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government
Pension Scheme administered by Derbyshire County Council. It is a defined benefit occupational
pension scheme. Pensions and other retirement benefits earned prior to 1 April 2014 are based on final
salaries, benefits earned after that date are calculated on earnings accrued in a scheme year.
Employers and employees make regular contributions into the fund, which are invested in various types
of assets, so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the employment period. Actuarial valuations of
the fund are undertaken every three years to determine the contributions rates needed to meet its
liabilities.
For both schemes the liabilities are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method (an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover
rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees). Liabilities are discounted to
their value at current prices, using a discount rate. The Discount Rate used is based on the ‘current rate
of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities’,
which is often referred to as AA Corporate Bond Rate.
Assets in the Local Government Pension scheme are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 



Quoted and Unitised Securities – Current Bid Price.
Unquoted Securities – Professional Estimate.
Property – Market Value.

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:









Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of one additional year of service earned
this year – allocated to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates
to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of non-distributed costs.
Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move
one year closer to being paid - debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the
year, based on an average of the expected long term return – credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the liabilities or
events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of non-distributed costs.
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve.
Contributions paid to the pension fund.

The Chief Constable’s accounts include the pension costs, assets and liabilities for all staff, including
those employed directly by the Commissioner. The scheme assets and liabilities for the two corporation
soles are pooled, any pro rota would not be accurate as valuing the fund is based on various
assumptions. The effect of including all of the pension figures in the Chief Constable’s accounts has no
material effect on the accounts.
Notes on Pensions are included on pages 31 to 38 of the accounts.
Discretionary Benefits
The Chief Constable also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award.
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Events after the Balance Sheet Date
These are events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue. The Chief Constable will report these in the following way if it is
determined that the event has had a material effect on the Chief Constable’s financial position: 

Events which provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period will be
adjusted and included within the figures in the accounts.



Events that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting will be reported in the narrative
notes to the accounts.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

Non-Current Assets – Vehicles, Plant, Furniture, Equipment and Assets under
Construction
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are
classified as Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment.
Recognition and Measurement
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of assets is capitalised on an accruals basis,
provided that it yields benefits and the services it provides for more than one financial year and that the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.
Assets under construction are held in the Balance Sheet at historical cost until completed, whereupon
they will be valued and included in the Balance Sheet as operational assets.
Where assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as
a proxy for fair value e.g. vehicles, IT and communications equipment.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives and is calculated on a straight-line basis as
follows:Vehicles

Over the life of the asset (3 - 10 years)

Equipment
(inc. IT and Communications)

Over the life of the asset (5 - 15 years)
Majority of assets are 5 years.

Furniture

Over the life of the asset (10 years)

It is policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is made in the
year of disposal. Depreciation is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and is reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Disposals
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal

Non-Current Assets - Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and
controlled by the Chief Constable as a result of past events (e.g. software licences), are capitalised
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Chief Constable.
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Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to provide information on policing matters.
Intangible assets are measured at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets
held can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held meets this
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible
asset is amortised to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over its useful life.
Amortisation, as with depreciation, commences in the financial year following that in which they are
received. Amortisation is not permitted to have any impact on the General Reserve Balance; it is
therefore reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 


Depreciation attributable to the assets used.
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets.

The Chief Constable is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or amortisations.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the vehicles, plant or equipment from the lessor (landlord) to the
lessee (tenant). All other leases are classified as operating leases.
a) Finance Leases
i) Lessee – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessee will be recognised on
the Balance Sheet at an amount equal to the fair value of the asset, or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease.
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. This liability is reduced
as lease payments are made. Minimum lease payments are to be apportioned between the finance
charge (interest) and the reduction of the deferred liability.
The finance charge (interest) will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line).
Finance lease assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way
as vehicle, plant and equipment owned by the Chief Constable. Depreciation to be charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.
ii) Lessor – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as a finance lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessor will be recognised on
the Balance Sheet as a debtor at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The lease
payment is treated as repayment of principal and finance income (interest).
Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the debtor and recognised as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as the income.
Rental income from finance leases entered into after 1 April 2010 should be treated as a capital receipt
and recognised in the accounts of the Commissioner and Group.
b) Operating Leases
i) Lessee – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease and where the Chief Constable is the lessee, the rentals will be
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Charges are made on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease.
ii) Lessor – Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
An asset identified as an operating lease, and where the Chief Constable is the lessor, shall be retained
in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
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Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice
2014/15 (SeRCOP). The full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:



Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Chief Constable’s status as a multifunctional democratic organisation.
Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing Services.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions – these are required for liabilities that have been incurred, but are of uncertain timing or
amount. There are three criteria:




The Chief Constable has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event.
It is more likely than not that money will be needed to settle the obligation.
A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year that the Chief Constable becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate
at the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party
(e.g. from an insurance claim), the income is only recognised as income if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received when the obligation is settled.
Provisions contained within the Balance Sheet are split between current liabilities (those which are
estimated to be settled within the next 12 months) and non-current liabilities (those which are estimated
to be settled in a period greater than 12 months).
Details of provisions held at 31st March 2015 are shown in Note 14 to the accounts.
Contingent Liabilities – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Chief Constable a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Chief Constable. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
Contingent Asset – this arises where an event has taken place that gives the Chief Constable a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Chief Constable.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Reserves
Unusable Reserves - certain reserves/accounts are kept to manage the accounting processes for noncurrent assets (Capital Adjustment Account and Revaluation Reserve), retirement and employee
benefits (Pensions Reserve, Short term Accumulating Compensated Absences Account. These do not
represent usable resources for the Chief Constable.
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Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Chief Constable does not submit a VAT return as the Commissioner submits a single VAT return on
behalf of the Group. Expenditure in the Chief Constable’s Income and Expenditure Statement excludes
any amounts relating to VAT as all VAT is remitted to/from HM Revenue and Customs.

Jointly Controlled Operations
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken in conjunction with other venturers that involve the
use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The
Balance Sheet of the Group recognises the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs. The
Chief Constable Accounts include Derbyshire’s share of running these operations as part of the Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Accounting standards that have been issued but not yet been adopted
For 2014/15 the new standards that need to be reported relates to amendments to IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement, Annual Improvements to IFRSs and IFRIC 21 Levies. Note 17 in the accounts discloses
information relating to the impact of the accounting change.

Changes in Accounting Estimates
Significant estimates and judgements in applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies set out above, the Chief Constable has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical
judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:



A judgement has been made of the expenditure allocated between the Commissioner and the
Chief Constable to reflect the financial resources of the Commissioner consumed at the
request of the Chief Constable. The basis adopted for this allocation was determined by the
Group in accordance with the standard set of activities for each corporate body identified in
CIPFA’s SeRCOP and careful consideration was also given to the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act and Home Office Guidance.

Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Chief Constable about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made to taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances
cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions
and estimates.
The items in the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
Uncertainties
Pensions Liability
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends
on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund
assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to
provide the Group with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

Effect if Actual Results differ from Assumptions
The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in
individual assumptions can be measured. For instance
for the largest scheme, the 1987 Police Pension
scheme, it is estimated that a 0.5% reduction in the
discount rate’s excess over pension increases would
result in an increase in the pensions liability of 11.6%.
This equates to £200m. If pension increases were to be
0.5% higher per year this would increase the liability by
9.4% (£161m).
However, the assumptions interact in complex ways. For
example, during 2014/15 the Police Pension Scheme
liability decreased by £31.560m as a result of experience
changes and increased by £212.110m as a result of the
updating of actuarial assumptions. Experience changes
are those that arise from specific occurrences relating to
scheme membership during the year.
A national review of public sector pensions has led to
recent changes in benefits payable, employee
contribution rates and retirement ages. These will have
an impact on the level of future liabilities. In the case of
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the Police Pension Scheme the government
implemented
stepped
increases
to
employee
contributions over the 3 years beginning 1 April 2012.
As from 1 April 2014, under changes brought in by the
Public Pensions Services Act 2013, members of the
Local Government Pension Scheme now accrue benefit
entitlements based on their career-average salaries
instead of on their final salary at the point of retirement.
Similarly a new Police Officer Pension Scheme which
commenced in April 2015 will provide future benefits
based on career-average salaries.
Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account for compensated
absences earned but not taken in the year (eg annual
leave, flexi leave) is based on a sample of police staff
updated for the total number of police staff at the 31
March. This represents £0.275m of the figure of
£1.326m. The rest is for police officers which is based on
actual data from the HR system.

If the amount of annual leave and flexi leave for police
staff increased by 10% this would increase the balance
by £0.027m. This figure is included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account as a
cost to the police service but is neutralised by transfers
to the Accumulated Absences Account.

The Accounting Policies and Changes in Accounting Estimates can sometimes be found as a note to
the Financial Statements.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE CHIEF CONSTABLE
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for the Chief
Constable. In practice all the respective costs are paid for by the Commissioner other than those reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The CIES includes the intra-group funding adjustment from the PCC.

Restated
Chief Constable
For the year ended 31 March 2014
Gross
Expenditure

Gross
Income

Net
Expenditure

Gross
Expenditure

Gross
Income

Net
Expenditure

Chief Constable
For the year ended 31 March 2015

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

83,213
14,860
16,127
9,373
9,897
10,500
40,391
5,617
12,283
330
77
202,668

(2,634)
(324)
(1,110)
(2,240)
(601)
(537)
(1,821)
(72)
(9,637)
0
0
(18,976)

80,579
14,536
15,017
7,133
9,296
9,963
38,570
5,545
2,646
330
77
183,692

(184,352)
18,316

18,976
0

(165,376)
18,316
0
777
(777)

69,260

0

69,260

0

(18,384)

(18,384)

87,576

(18,384)

69,192

Local Policing
Dealing with the Public
Criminal Justice Arrangements
Road Policing
Specialist Operations
Intelligence
Specialist Investigation
Investigative Support
National Policing
Corporate and Democratic Core
Non Distributed Costs
Cost of Policing Services before revaluations/funding
Intra-group funding
Cost of Policing Services

78,220 (2,655)
14,818
(332)
16,114 (1,128)
8,853 (2,321)
9,524
(271)
10,431
(498)
40,545 (1,662)
4,933
(87)
12,613 (10,283)
299
0
84
0
196,434 (19,237)
(180,503)
15,931

19,237
0

(161,266)
15,931

216

216
926
(926)

0

72,647

0 (22,264)

(22,264)

88,578 (22,048)

66,530

(Gains) or Losses on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Levies to national police services
Intra-group Fund adjustment (Levies to national police services)
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Police Pensions Interest Cost
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
Police Officer Pension Grant
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services

75,565
14,486
14,986
6,532
9,253
9,933
38,883
4,846
2,330
299
84
177,197

72,647

(77,720)
0

Actuarial (Gains) or Losses on Police Pension
Effects of Business Combinations

209,343
2,837

(77,720)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

212,180

(8,528)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

278,710
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BALANCE SHEET FOR THE CHIEF CONSTABLE
The balance sheet shows the value of the Chief Constables assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The net assets or
liabilities are matched by the Chief Constable's reserves. The Chief Constable only holds unusuable reserves, these are not
able to be used to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the revaluation reserve) and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations'

31-Mar-14
Restated
£000

Note

31-Mar-15
£000

0
0
0

Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Long-Term Assets

0
0
0
0

Short-Term Debtors - Intra group Debtor
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Assets Held for Sale (< 1 yr)
Current Assets

11
12

13,136
1,290
14,426
4,603
0
0
4,603

0
0
(1,204)

Short-Term Borrowing
Short-Term Creditors - Intra group creditor
Short-Term Creditors - Accumulated Absences

0
(4,603)
(1,326)

(1,204)

Current Liabilities

(5,929)

0
0
(1,602,656)
0
0

Long-Term Provisions
Long-Term Borrowing
Other Long-Term Liabilities - Pension Scheme
Donated Assets Account
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

0
0
(1,933,664)
0
0

(1,602,656)

Long-Term Liabilities

(1,933,664)

(1,603,860)

Net Assets/(Liabilities)

(1,920,564)

0

Usable Reserves

(1,602,656)
(1,204)

Unusable Reserves - Revaluation Reserve
Unusable Reserves - Capital Adjustment Account
Unusable Reserves - Pension reserve
Unusable Reserves - Accumulated Absences Rese

(1,603,860)

Total Reserves
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12
14,414
(1,933,664)
(1,326)
(1,920,564)
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0

0
0
0
0

Transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves

Increase or (Decrease) in Year

Balance as at 31 March 2015 carried forward

3,593
0
0
0
216
67,803
0
0
0
0
(4,603)
0
(479)
66,530

(66,530)
0
(66,530)

0

0

0

0

3,593
0
0
0
216
67,803
0
0
0
0
(4,603)
0
(479)
66,530

(66,530)
0
(66,530)

0

£000

£000

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
- Depreciation and Impairment of non-current assets
- Revaluation of non-current assets
- Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES
- Revenue Expenditure funded from capital under statute
- Net gain or loss on sale of non-current assets
- Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the code
(IAS19) are different from the contributions due under the pension scheme
- Amount by which council tax income included in the CIES is different
from the amount taken to the General Reserve in accordance with regulation
- Statutory provision for repayment of debt
- Capital expenditure funded by PCC Intra-group funding
- Any voluntary provision for repayment of debt
- Charges for employee benefits
Total Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis

Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (accounting basis)
Other comprehensive income and expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Balance as at 1 April 2014 and transfers from the Commissioner under Stage 2

Note

Total Usable
Reserves

General
Reserve
Balance

(1,920,564)

(278,709)

(212,179)

(66,530)

(3,593)
0
0
0
(216)
(67,803)
0
0
0
0
4,603
0
479
(66,530)

0
0
0

(1,641,855)

£000
16

Unusable
Reserves

(1,920,564)

(278,709)

(212,179)

(66,530)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(66,530)
0
(66,530)

(1,641,855)

£000

Total
Authority
Reserves

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves. The Chief Constable does not hold any usable reserves but does hold
unusable reserves as a result of its application of both the code and IFRS.

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 2014/15 OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE
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0

0
0
0
0

Transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves

Increase or (Decrease) in Year

Balance as at 31 March 2014 carried forward

0
0
0
(633)
69,192

0

0
0
0
0
0
69,825

(69,192)
0
(69,192)

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0
69,825
0
0
0
0
0
0
(633)
69,192

(69,192)
0
(69,192)

0

£000

£000

Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations
- Depreciation and Impairment of non-current assets
- Revaluation of non-current assets
- Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES
- Revenue Expenditure funded from capital under statute
- Net gain or loss on sale of non-current assets
- Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the code
(IAS19) are different from the contributions due under the pension scheme
- Amount by which council tax income included in the CIES is different
from the amount taken to the General Reserve in accordance with regulation
- Statutory provision for repayment of debt
- Capital expenditure charged to the General Reserve Balance
- Any voluntary provision for repayment of debt
- Charges for employee benefits
Total Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis

Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (accounting basis)
Other comprehensive income and expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Balance as at 1 April 2013

Note

Total Usable
Reserves

General
Reserve
Balance

(1,603,860)

8,528

77,720

(69,192)

0
0
0
633
(69,192)

0

0
0
0
0
0
(69,825)

0
0
0

(1,612,388)

£000
16

Unusable
Reserves

(1,603,860)

8,528

77,720

(69,192)

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0
0

(69,192)
0
(69,192)

(1,612,388)

£000

Total
Authority
Reserves

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves. The Chief Constable does not hold any usable reserves but does hold
unusable reserves as a result of its application of both the code and IFRS.

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 2013/14 OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE RESTATED

CASHFLOW OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE
This statement does not show any cash-flows for the year ending 31 March as all payments were made from the Police Fund which is held by the
Commissioner and similarly all income and funding is received by the Commissioner during the year. The financial consequences of the operational
activities undertaken by the Chief Constable can be seen in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Restated
31-Mar-14
£'000

31-Mar-15
£'000

69,192

0
0
633
(69,825)
0
(69,192)

Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Adjust Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services for Non-cash Movements
Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Capital expenditure funded by PCC Intra-group funding
(Increase)/Decrease in Creditors - accumulated absences
Pension Liability
Carrying Amount of Non-Current Assets Sold

66,530

(3,282)
(311)
4,603
479
(67,803)
(216)
(66,530)

0

Adjust for Items Included in the Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services that are
Investing and Financing Activities

0

0

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

0

0
0
0

Investing Activities
Financing Activities
Net (Increase) or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

0
0
0

0
0

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Reporting Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Reporting Period

0
0
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Chief Constable
Note 1 Change to Accounting Treatment
The Chief Constable Accounts were restated last year to reflect transactions appearing in the
CIES for the Chief Constable and the Balance Sheet reflecting the Police Officer pension
liabilities and police officer Short Term accumulated absences. As the Commissioner has
control of the bank accounts, funding and all reserves, intra group debtors entries were put in
the Chief Constable Balance Sheet to offset the liabilities.
The Status of the Chief Constable changed under The Police Reform and Social Responsibility
Act 2011 (Transitional Provision) Order 2013 which was laid before Parliament on 17
September 2013 and was effective from 31 March 2014. This order permits Chief Constables
to apply Sections 21 and 22 of the Local Government Act 2003 (accounts) to their transactions
which allows the entity to transact in the same way as a Local Authority. The implications of
this is that the Chief Constable has the statutory powers to remove notional debit and credits of
retirement benefits, short term accumulated absences and capital adjustments (eg depreciation
etc) through the Movement on Reserves Statement to unusable reserves.
The prior year Accounts for the Chief Constable have been restated to reflect the above
change in accounting treatment.

Note 2 Stage Two Transfer
The Accounts also reflect the second stage of the reforms within the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011, which were introduced in April 2014. The Commissioner is still
responsible for the finances of the whole Group and he controls all land and buildings, liabilities
and reserves. The Commissioner receives all income and funding and makes all the payments
for the Group from the Police Fund. In turn the Chief Constable fulfils his functions under the
Act within an annual budget (set by the Commissioner in consultation with the Chief
Constable). The main changes to the Accounts from 1 April 2014 are



All employees (Police officers and staff) with the exception of the staff of the
Commissioner come under Chief Constable
Long term Assets other than land & buildings and Jointly controlled assets come
under the Chief Constable

No reinstatement is required for the implications of Stage Two Transfers as the change occurs
as at 1 April 2014.

Note 3 Subjective Expenditure Analysis
In the table below the financial resources of the Commissioner consumed at the request of the
Chief Constable for the year to 31 March 2015 are presented in a subjective analysis format.
The subjective analysis is used by management to make decisions about resource allocation in
internal management reports. It differs from the analysis of income and expenditure on the face
of the CIES as specified by the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP), which is
by policing activity.
The following table is intended to aid the reader in understanding where the money is spent
and in making comparisons between Forces in terms of the type of expenditure incurred.
Chief
Constable
2013/14
£’000
81,724
43,333
225
641
38,300
7,769
4,346
14,310
6,785
5,158
0
77
202,668

Chief
Constable
2014/15
Financial Resources of the Commissioner consumed
at the request of the Chief Constable
Police Pay & Allowances
Police Staff Pay & Allowances
Other Pay and allowances
Other Employee Expenses
Police Pensions (Current Cost)
Premises
Transport
Supplies & Services
Agency & Contracted Services
Depreciation & Cost of using Commissioner’s Property
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Non Distributed Costs

£’000
80,212
44,884
233
1,290
33,370
6,798
4,212
14,425
6,256
4,667
3
84
196,434

Income from fees/charges and Special Government Grant
(18,976)
183,692

Net Cost of Policing Services
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Note 4 Leases
As Lessee – Operating Leases
The financial consequences of leases, where the Constabulary have used the asset are
recognised in the accounts of the Chief Constable and are detailed as follows:Equipment
In 2014/15, £108,090 was spent on rental payments for Hired Photocopiers (£97,171 in
2013/14). £81,660 was spent in 2014/15 on rental payments for Livescan units (an electronic
system for taking fingerprints), the same amount was spent in 2013/14.
st
As at 31 March 2015, outstanding commitments in respect of Equipment leases were: -

£’000
327
1,308

Within 12 Months
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Land and Buildings
A number of buildings are leased and are accounted for as an operating lease. In 2014/15,
£352,771 was paid for the lease of land and buildings (£510,478 in 2013/14). The reduction
reflects the decision to reduce the amount of lease properties. The majority of these leases are
less than £10,000 per annum.
As at 31st March 2015, outstanding commitments in respect of property leases were: £’000
340
931
1,236

Within 12 Months
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
More than 5 years

As Lessor – Operating Leases
As lessor the financial consequences of a number of offices leased is shown in the accounts of
the Chief Constable to recognise the income generated. Rent received for these properties in
2014/15 was £5,915 (£5,915 in 2013/14). A further £155,377 was received for mast rental in
2014/15 (£150,634 in 2013/14).

Note 5 Officers Remuneration
The table below provides disclosure of the remuneration of Senior Officers and relevant Police
Officers whose salary is more than £50,000 or more per year.
Remuneration is all amounts paid to or receivable by a person, and includes sums due by way
of expenses allowance (so far as those sums are chargeable to United Kingdom income tax),
and the estimated money value of any other benefits received by an employee otherwise than
in cash.
Post Holder
Information

Note

Salary
£

Allowances
£

Other
payments
£

Benefits
in kind
£

Employer
pension
£

1,3
3
2

Total
Remuneration
2013/14
£
180,269
130,197
152,691

141,330
116,595
116,595

12,068
9,737
4,935

21,974
775
775

8,545
5,569
4,506

28,216

Total
Remuneration
2014/15
£
183,917
132,676
155,027

Chief Constable (CC)
Deputy CC
Deputy CC
Collaboration
Assistant CC Crime
and Territorial Policing
Chief Supt B Division/
Temp ACC Crime and
Territorial Policing
Assistant CC Crime
and Territorial
Assistant CC
Operational Support
Assistant CC
Operational Support
Assistant CC Special
Branch (secondment)
Director of Finance

4

36,143

-

-

-

-

-

-

5

119,261

88,232

7,956

1,173

21,352

118,713

6

-

70,045

2,197

112

3,204

16,951

92,509

7

125,490

-

-

-

-

-

-

8

104,574

94,735

4,254

420

2,189

22,926

124,524

9

73,316

-

-

-

-

-

-

91,501

7,000

775

-

10,888

110,164

113,376
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Note 1 - As the total remuneration for 2014/15 has exceeded £150k the regulations require that Mr M Creedon
be named.
Note 2 - As the total remuneration for 2014/15 has exceeded £150k the regulations require that Mr P Goodman
be named.
Note 3 - The Chief Constable & Deputy Chief Constable have opted out of the Police Officers Pension scheme.
Note 4 - ACC Crime and Territorial Policing retired on the 15/07/13.
Note 5 - Chief Supt B&C Division carried out the role of Temporary ACC between 15/07/13 to 06/07/14 full salary
details for both years have been shown.
Note 6 – A new ACC Crime and Territorial was appointed 07/07/14.
Note 7 - ACC Operational Support resigned on 06/01/14.
Note 8 - Chief Supt Corporate Services carried out the role of Temporary ACC between 06/01/14 to 31/03/14 full
salary details for the whole year have been shown. He was appointed ACC Operational Support from 01/04/14.
Note 9 - ACC Special Branch is a secondment to ACPO TAM and costs are fully recovered. The holder of this
post left on the 01/11/2013 and was not replaced with a Derbyshire officer.

The disclosure below details salary of Police Staff and Senior Police Officers (over and above
the rank of Superintendent) receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding
employer’s pension contributions). This excludes the officers shown in the above table.
Remuneration Band

Note

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999
£90,000 - £94,999
£130,000 - £134,999
TOTAL

1

No. Of Employees
2013/14
10
3
0
0
3
1
5
0
3
1
26

No. Of Employees
2014/15
15
3
0
0
1
2
7
0
2
0
30

Note 1 – The remuneration for this Police Officer in 2013/14 included a one off payment of £60,700
for the backpay of rent allowance for a number of years.

Exit Packages

The total cost of £610,251 in the table below is the cost of exit packages that have been
agreed, accrued, and charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
current year. In addition the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes a
provision for £605,328 for 39 officers who it is estimated will accept a voluntary redundancy
package, these costs are, however not included in the below table as it is not possible at this
juncture to slot the employees exit packages into the appropriate bandings therefore an
additional line has been added to reconcile to the total cost of termination benefits reported in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The majority of the exit packages
agreed in 2014/15 are as a result of the implementation of the Moving Forward Savings for
year 1.
2013/14
Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
other
departures
agreed

0
0
0
0
0
0

2014/15

13

Total
Number of
Exit
Packages
Agreed
13

Total cost
of exit
packages in
each band
£
101,620

2
2
2
0
19

2
2
2
0
19

48,791
104,488
148,287
0
403,186

Exit package
cost band
(including
special
payments)
£0 - £20,000
£20,000-£40,000
£40,001-£60,000
£60,001-£80,000
£80,001-£100,000
Sub Total

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
other
departures
agreed

0

20

Total
Number
of Exit
Packages
Agreed
20

0
0
0
0
0

8
0
1
1
30

8
0
1
1
30

217,995
0
74,452
83,059
610,251

39

39

605,328

Provision

0
0

(1)

(1)

(79,168)

18

18

324,018

Adjustments to
previous year
creditors
Less Amount met
from previous
years provision
TOTAL
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Total cost
of exit
packages in
each band
£
234,745

(661)

0
0

69

69

29

1,214,918

Note 6 External Audit Fees
Fees in relation to external audit for the Chief Constable are as follows: 2013/14
£’000
Fees payable with regard to external audit services
TOTAL

20.0
20.0

2014/15
£’000
20.0
20.0

Note 7 Jointly Controlled Operations
East Midlands Jointly Controlled Operations
Jointly Controlled Operations (JCO) or Collaborations with other East Midlands Forces are
used to deliver services within the Force. The share of cost to Derbyshire is different depending
on the number partaking in the JCO.
The following table show the accounts for all the JCO’S and the balances attributable to
Derbyshire.
31 March 2014
Jointly
Controlled
Operations
£’000

Derbyshire
Police

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

£’000

16,883
515
946
3,024
110
411

4,227
114
226
704
25
91

0
3,266
25,155

0
725
6,112

(362)
0

31 March 2015

(89)
0

24,793

6,023

(20,476)
(2,516)
(145)
1,656

Employees’ Expenses
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Agency and contracted Services
Capital Charges
Revenue Funded from Capital
under Statute
Revaluation Losses
Gross Operating Expenditure
Other Income
Profit and loss on disposal of
Fixed Assets

Jointly
Controlled
Operations
£’000

Derbyshire
Police
£’000

19,843
213
977
3,934
196
450

4,730
47
221
950
43
99

15
0
25,628

3
0
6,093

(721)
0

(147)
0

24,907

5,946

(5,076)
(559)
(48)

Net Operating Expenditure
Financed by:Contributions from Partners
External Grants
Capital Grants & Contributions

(23,025)
(3,117)
(1,359)

(5,522)
(682)
(298)

340

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year

(2,594)

(556)

The JCO’s cover a number of operational and support areas. Details of these are set out in the
table below (Where reference is made to ‘all 5 forces’ this means Derbyshire, Leicestershire,
Lincolnshire, Northamptonshire and Nottinghamshire)
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Jointly Controlled
Operation

Activity

Participants

Commenced

EM SOU – SOC

Specialist
Operations
Co-ordination of
Major Crime
investigations
Technical
Surveillance
Forensic analysis
and identification
Specialist Legal
advice and services,
incl Insurance
Co-ordination of
regional training
provision
Occupational Health
Services
Transactional HR
services
Procurement and
contract services

All 5 forces

Jan 2003

All 5 forces

EMSOU Major Crime –
Command Team
EMSOU TSU
EMSOU Forensics
EM Legal Services

EM CHRS – Learning &
Development
EM CHRS –
Occupational Health
HR Service Centre
EM Strategic
Commercial Unit

Total
Income
£’000
(2,848)

(Surplus)
/ Deficit

21.9

Gross
Exp
£’000
2,462

Sept 2011

21.9

242

(264)

(22)

All 5 forces

July 2011

21.9

449

(493)

(44)

All 5 forces

April 2014

21.9

796

(886)

(90)

All 5 forces

April 2014

20.1

264

(269)

(5)

Derbys,
Lincs, Leics,
Notts
All 5 forces

April 2012

25.1

630

(644)

(14)

April 2012

21.9

379

(375)

4

June 2014

48.8

594

(591)

3

Sept 2012

33.3

277

(279)

(2)

6,093

(6,649)

(556)

Derbys, Leics
(see note 1)
Derbys,
Northants,
Notts

Totals

Derbys
%

Note 1
Derbyshire and Leicestershire began collaborating on a Human Resources Shared Service Centre in June
2014. In 2014/15 the net costs were fully shared across the 2 forces with the agreed formula, Derbyshire’s
percentage being as shown in the above table.

Note 8 Related Party Transactions
The Chief Constable is required to disclose all material transactions with related parties –
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Chief Constable or to be
controlled or influenced by the Chief Constable.
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Chief
Constable might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have
secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Chief Constable.
Central Government
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Chief
Constable – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Chief
Constable operates.
Officers
Certain senior officers might be in a position to influence significantly the policies, no related
party transactions have been identified following the consultation with relevant officers.
Commissioner
The Commissioner holds the Chief Constable to account, a scheme of consent is in place that
gives clarity to how the two organisations operate and are governed. The Chief Constable
fulfils his function within a budget set by the Commissioner.
Other Public Bodies
The Chief Constable participates in Jointly Controlled Operations with other East Midlands
Forces. The transactions have been disclosed in Note 7.

Note 9 Accounting for Pension Costs (a)
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the
Chief Constable offers post-employment (retirement) benefits. Although these benefits will not
actually be payable until employees retire, the Chief Constable has a commitment to make
payments which needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
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(386)

The Chief Constable participates in two post-employment schemes: 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for police staff is a defined benefit
scheme. It is a funded scheme which is administered by Derbyshire County Council.
Pensions and other retirement benefits are paid from the fund. Employers and employees
make regular contributions into the fund so that the liabilities are paid for evenly over the
employment period.
Actuarial valuations of the fund are undertaken every three years to determine the
contribution rates needed to meet its liabilities. A valuation was undertaken during
2013/14 for the period commencing 1 April 2014 and the next valuation will be in 2016/17
for the period commencing 1 April 2017.
The 2014/15 total employer contribution of £5.437m consisted of £4.911m in ‘regular’
contributions and £0.526m in additional one-off contributions towards early retirements.
This is in line with pension costs necessary to be provided in accordance with IAS19
“Employee Benefits”. The regular contributions consist of 2 elements:

a ‘future service rate’ to meet the estimated cost of benefits that will be earned in
future (set at 11.9% of pensionable pay at the last valuation)

a ‘deficit recovery repayment’ lump sum to enable the difference between the value of
benefits earned to date and the assets that have been built up to be recovered over a
specified period (£1.333m paid in 2014//15)
In total these 2 elements equated to a contribution rate of 15.8% of pensionable pay for
2014/15.
In addition to contributions to the Pension fund the Chief Constable is responsible for
compensation payments in the form of “added years” awarded on premature retirement. In
2014/15 these amounted to £0.035m.
Further information can be found in the County Council’s Pension Fund Statement of
Accounts, which is available upon request from Derbyshire County Council.



The Police Pension Scheme for police officers is an unfunded single employer defined
benefit scheme. This means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police
officers but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities. Two
schemes were in operation in 2014/15. The 1987 Police Pension Scheme is based on a
maximum pensionable service of 30 years, whilst the 2006 New Police Pension Scheme
(effective for police officers commencing from April 2006 onwards) is based on a maximum
pensionable service of 35 years.
Both the 1987 and 2006 Schemes provide pensions based on officers’ final salaries. From
6 April 2015 a new Police Officer pension scheme came into existence (the Police Pension
Scheme 2015) which will provide pensions based on career average salaries. All new
officers and existing officers not subject to protection arrangements will now be members
of the 2015 scheme.
From April 2006 the method of financing Police Officers pensions changed. A new
Pensions Account was set up from this date. Officers’ contributions and an employer’s
contribution are paid into the pensions account from which pension payments are made.
The account is topped up each year by the Home Office if the contributions in that year
are insufficient to meet the cost of pensions paid. Any surplus is repaid to the Home
Office.
For 2014/15 a Top up grant of £22.264m was received from the Home Office and the
employer’s contributions to the account amounted to £16.112m representing 24.2% of
pensionable salary. The rate from 1 April 2015 is 21.3% following a re-valuation of
scheme liabilities by the Government Actuary’s Department during 2014/15. In addition,
payments were made into the Pensions Fund Account totalling £1.054m to reimburse the
costs of benefits becoming payable early due to ill-health retirement. Injury-related
payments amounted to £1.863m and these were paid from the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Account. The Pensions Fund Account is shown on page 45.

Transactions relating to post-employment benefits (b)
In order to reflect the full financial consequences of using the services of staff during the year,
a charge for pensions is made to the Chief Constable’s CIES. Under IAS 19 this charge is
made up of the Current Service Cost, and past service costs.
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The Current Service Cost represents the total pension benefits earned by active employees
during the year (not benefits paid), converted to their present value. It is determined by
actuaries, independently of the funding of the 2 schemes and is a measure of the full liability
created during the year. Past service costs and curtailments are commitments arising from
previous early retirements.
The costs include the Office of the PCC. It would be difficult to split out these costs from the
information provided by the Actuary and for the number of staff it would not be material.
The total charges for Police Staff made to the Chief Constable for retirement benefits in
2013/14 are as follows :

Operating Cost Statement

Current Service Cost

Non Distributed Costs - past service cost/(gain)

Non Distributed Costs - curtailments
Total Charges made to the Chief Constable

Local Govt
Pension
Scheme
2013/14
£’000
7,094
67
7,161

In the PCC Group Accounts the costs shown above are reversed out of the General Reserve
via the Movement of Reserves Statement and replaced by the Actual pensions paid. Under
Stage 2 all Police Staff transferred to the Chief Constable from 1 April 2014 whereas before
staff were employed by the Commissioner. From 2014/15 all Police Staff Costs and reversals
are shown in the Chief Constable Accounts as shown below:

Local Government Pension Scheme
Comprehensive I&E Statement
Cost of Services

current service cost
*

Non Distributed Costs - past service cost/(gain)

Non Distributed Costs - curtailments
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net Interest cost
Total Post Employment Benefits Charged to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other
Post
Employment
Benefits
charged
to
the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Re-measurements of surpluses/deficits
Return on scheme assets (excluding the amount included
in the net interest expense)
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in
demographic assumptions
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Other experience changes
Total Re-measurements
Total
Post
Employment
Benefits
Charged
to
the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement Expenditure

Reversal of net charges for post employment benefits in
accordance with the code
Actual amount charged against the General Reserve Balance
for pensions in the year

Employers’ contributions payable to scheme plus added
years

Retirement benefits payable to pensioners
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2014/15
£’000
8,467
84
0
2,297
10,848

(12,474)
0
42,560
(1,293)
28,793
39,641

(39,641)

5,472
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Police Pensions Schemes

Comprehensive I&E Statement
Cost of Services

current service cost
*

Non Distributed Costs - past
service cost/(gain)
Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure

Net Interest cost
Total Post Employment Benefits
Charged to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services
Other Post Employment Benefits
charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Re-measurement of surpluses /deficits

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising
from changes in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising
from
changes
in
financial
assumptions

Other experience changes

2013/14

1987
scheme
£’000
31,040
10

2006
scheme
£’000
7,260
-

66,940
97,990

2014/15

Total
£’000
38,300
10

1987
scheme
£’000
26,360
-

2006
Scheme
£’000
7,010
-

Total
£’000
33,370
-

2,320
9,580

69,260
107,570

67,720
94,080

2,630
9,640

70.350
103,720

(45,880)

(4,410)

(50,290)

(64,970)

(7,710)

(72,680)

180

(20)

160

268,760

16,030

284,790

(26,160)

(1,430)

(27,590)

(29,570)

(1,990)

(31,560)

(71,860)

(5,860)

(77,720)

174,220

6,330

180,550

26,130

3,720

29,850

268,300

15,970

284,270

(26,130)

(3,720)

(29,850)

(268,300)

(15,970)

(284,270)

16,281

3,081

19,362

15,652

3,377

19,029

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total Re-measurements
Total Post Employment Benefits
Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
Expenditure

Reversal of net charges for post
employment
benefits
in
accordance with the code
Actual amount charged against the
General Reserve Balance for
pensions in the year

Employers’
contributions
payable to scheme

Retirement benefits payable
to pensioners

*For the LGPS the current service cost is within the Police Staff Pay and Allowances figure in
note 3.
The Current Service Cost – which is the total increase in entitlements earned by existing
employees during the year - and the other gains and losses are affected by changes in the
key actuarial and financial assumptions used in projecting future pension entitlements. Note
10b details the key demographic and financial assumptions which have been used in
calculating these figures. It also quantifies the impact if different assumptions are used.

Note 10 Assets and Liabilities in relation to Post employment benefits (a)
Note 9 contains details of the Chief Constable’s participation in the Local Government
Pensions Scheme (administered by Derbyshire County Council) and the Police Pension
Scheme in providing Police staff and police officers with retirement benefits.
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Reconciliation of the present value of the schemes’ liabilities is as follows:
Funded Liabilities: Local Government
Pension Scheme
Opening Balance at 1 April

2014/15
£’000
(209,382)

Current Service Cost
Interest on pension liabilities
Contributions from scheme participants
Past Service (Cost) / Gain
Curtailments
Remeasurement gains and (losses):

Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from
changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from
changes in financial assumptions

Other
Benefits paid
Effects of business combinations & disposals

(8,467)
(9,236)
(2,187)
(84)
0
0
(42,560)
1,293
4,967
(8,617)

Deficit as at 31 March

(274,273)

1987
scheme
Opening Balance
Current Service cost
Interest on pension liabilities
Contributions
from
scheme
participants
Past Service (Cost) / Gain
Remeasurement
gains
and
(losses):

Actuarial gains/(losses)
arising from changes in
financial and demographic
assumptions


Other – experience gains
and (losses)
Deficit as at 31 March

Unfunded Liabilities:
Police Pension Schemes 1987 and 2006
£’000
2013/14
2014/15
2006
Total
1987
2006
scheme
scheme
scheme

Total

(1,561,060)
(31,040)
(66,940)
39,874

(49,490)
(7,260)
(2,320)
(2,130)

(1,610,550)
(38,300)
(69,260)
37,744

(1,547,316)
(26,360)
(67,720)
43,394

(55,340)
(7,010)
(2,630)
(2,100)

(1,602,656)
(33,370)
(70,350)
41,294

(10)

-

(10)

-

-

-

45,700

4,430

50,130

(203,790)

(8,320)

(212,110)

26,160

1,430

27,590

29,570

1,990

31,560

(1,547,316)

(55,340)

(1,602,656)

(1,772,222)

(73,410)

(1,845,632)

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of
its defined benefit plans is as follows:
2013/14
£’000
Present value of the defined benefit
obligation
Local Government Pension Scheme
Police Pension Schemes
Fair value of scheme assets
Local Government Pension Scheme

(1,602,656)

2014/15
£’000

(274,273)
(1,845,632)
186,241

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation
Local Government pension scheme
Police Pension Schemes

(1,602,656)

(88,032)
(1,845,632))

Total

(1,602,656)

(1,933,664)

The liabilities show the underlying long-term commitments that the Chief Constable has to pay
for post-employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £1,933.664m has a substantial
impact on the net worth of the Chief Constable as recorded in the balance sheet. Some
£1,845.632m of this overall deficit relates to the Police Pension Scheme, which is a centrally
funded scheme administered and underwritten by HM Government. However, statutory
arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Chief Constable
remains stable:-
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The Local Government Pension Scheme

The current deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by contributions
over the remaining working life of employees (ie before payments fall due), as assessed
by the scheme actuary.

Also, due to national changes under the Public Pensions Services Act 2013, as from 1
April 2014 scheme members accrue pension entitlements based on career-average
salaries instead of the salary being paid at the point of retirement as previously.
The Police Pension Scheme

The method of financing Police Officers pensions changed from April 2006. These
changes, and the fact that the employer contribution rate will be assessed on a regular
basis to ensure that it accurately reflects the cost of the scheme, creates a more stable
environment for Police Officer pensions.

An actuarial valuation in 2014/15 has resulted in a reduction in the employer contribution
rate from 24.2% to 21.3% from April. However, the Constabulary will still need to make a
total contribution equivalent to 24.2% of pensionable pay as the reduction of 2.9% will be
retained by the government.

The government implemented staged increases to the rates of employee contributions
over a 3-year period which began from 1 April 2012.

In addition, the introduction of a new Police Pension Scheme from April 2015 means that
benefits accrued from this date will be based on a retirement age of 60, which is later than
previously, and on average salaries over the whole period of employment.
The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the
Commissioner in the year to 31 March 2016 are £4.880m. Expected contributions for the
Police Pension Scheme in the year to 31 March 2016 are £35.363m.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for members of the Local
Government Pension Scheme is:

Active Members
Deferred Members
Pensioner Members

2013/14
Years
25.4
25.7
12.1

2014/15
Years
25.4
25.7
12.1

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for the Police Pension Scheme
is 23 years for the 1987 scheme and 33 years for the 2006 scheme.
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of the assets of the Local Government
Pension Scheme: Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£’000
2014/15
Opening fair value at 1 April
Interest Income
Remeasurement gain/(loss)
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the
net interest expense
Contributions from employer
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits/transfers paid
Effects of business combinations and disposals
Closing fair value of scheme assets at 31 March

158,356
6,939

12,474
5,472
2,187
(4,967)
5,780
186,241

The expected return on Scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed
investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected
returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the
respective markets.
The actual return on scheme assets including expected return on plan assets in the year was a
gain of £19.413m (2013/14 a gain of £12.563m)
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Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: Quoted
prices
in
active
markets
£’000
Cash and cash
equivalents

2014/15
Quoted
Total
prices
£’000
not in
active
markets
£’000

% of
Total
Assets

-

11,818

11,818

6%

Equity Securities
Consumer
Manufacturing
Energy and Utilities
Financial Institutions
Health and Care
Information Technology
Other
Equities sub-total

14,749
18,665
13,597
14,471
8,329
3,745
18,632
92,188

-

14,749
18,665
13,597
14,471
8,329
3,745
18,632
92,188

8%
10%
7%
8%
4%
2%
10%
49%

Debt Securities
Corporate Bonds
UK Government Bonds
Other Bonds
Debt Securities sub-total

22,722
4,931
27,653

8,996
8,996

8,996
22,722
4,931
36,649

5%
12%
3%
20%

-

9,033

9,033

5%

910

474

1,384

1%

32,551
518
33,069

1,128
972
2,100

33,679
1,490
35,169

18%
1%
19%

153,820

32,421

186,241

100%

Property
UK Property

Private Equity
Other Investment Funds
Equities
Bonds
Infrastructure
Other Investment Funds
sub-total
Total Assets

The market value of total fund assets was £3,670 million as at 31 March 2015.
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities (b)
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary rates etc. Under the projected unit method, the current service cost will
increase as the members of the scheme approach retirement for the local government and
police pension schemes.
The Police officer scheme has been assessed by the Government Actuary Department (GAD)
and the local government scheme has been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an
independent firm of actuaries - estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the
latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2013.
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The main assumptions used in their calculations have been: Local Government
Pension Scheme
2014/15
Mortality assumptions:

Years

Police Pension
Scheme
2013/14
2014/15
Years

Years

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men
Women

22.0
24.2

23.4
25.9

23.3
25.7

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners
Men
Women

24.1
26.6

25.6
28.0

25.4
27.9

Financial Assumptions

%

%

%

Rate of RPI inflation
Rate of CPI inflation
Rate of increase in salaries

2.4

2.5
4.5

2.2
4.2

2.5

2.2

Rate of increase in pensions

3.3
2.4

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

3.2

4.4

3.3

Take up option to convert annual pension
into retirement grant :pre-April 2008 service
post-April 2008 service

50
75

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set
out in the table above.
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
to the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change
that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The
assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for
men and women. In practice this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions
may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting
policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projection unit credit method. The
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not
change from those used in the previous period.

Change In Assumption as at 31/03/15

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate
1 year increase in member life expectancy
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate
0.5% increase in the pension increase
rate

Local Government Pension
Scheme
Approximate
Approximate
% increase to monetary
Employer
amount
Liability
£’000
12
33,697
3
8,228
5
14,182
7
18,669

Police Pension Schemes –
1987 scheme
Approximate
Approximate
% increase to monetary
Employer
amount
Liability
£’000
11.6
200,000
2.4
42,000
1.6
28,000
9.4
161,000

Chief Constable for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2014/15

Police Pension
2006 scheme
Approximate
% increase to
Employer
Liability
17.3
1.8
7.3
8.0
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Schemes –
Approximate
monetary
amount
£’000
11,300
1,200
4,800
5,300

Note 11 Plant and Equipment
Movements in 2014/15
Operational

NonOperational

Vehicles,
Assets Under
Plant,
Construction- TOTAL
Furniture
Equipment
Equipment
£’000
£’000
£’000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2014
Additions
Revaluation Increases/(decreases) to RR
Revaluation Increases/(decreases) to SDPS
Derecognition – Disposals
Derecognition – Other
Reclassifications to/from Assets held for sale
Reclassifications – other
At 31 March 2015

33,477
2,941
(2)
0
(1,862)
(1,558)
0
362
33,358

Depreciation and Impairments
At 1 April 2014
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to RR
Depreciation written out to SDPS
Derecognition – Disposals
Derecognition – Other
Reclassifications to/from Assets held for sale
Reclassifications – other
At 31 March 2015

(21,677)
(3,282)
2
0
1,646
1,558
0
0
(21,753)

Net Book Value at 31 March 2015

RR = Revaluation Reserve

771
1,455
0
0
0
0
0
(695)
1,531

34,248
4,396
(2)
0
(1,862)
(1,558)
(0)
(333)
34,889

0 (21,677)
0 (3,282)
0
2
0
0
0
1,646
0
1,558
0
0
0
0
0 (21,753)

11,605

1,531

13,136

SDPS = Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Valuation of Assets
All Plant and Equipment is valued at historic cost.
Vehicle information has been taken from the Vehicle Fleet Information System (the total
number of vehicles as at 31 March 2015 is 583). IT and Communications information has been
provided by the Information Services Department.
Depreciation
The basis of depreciation is shown in the Statement of Accounting Policies (page 17).

Note 12 Intangible Assets
The Chief Constable accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the
hardware item of Plant and Equipment. The main purchases in 2014/15 being an Automatic
vehicle/people location system, an armoury management system, a HR Electronic Data
Management system and a Case & Custody Image Management system.
Purchased
Software Licences
£’000
Balance at 1 April 2014
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying amount 1 April 2014

3,812
(2,751)
1,061

Additions
Reclassifications
Amortisation in year

207
333
(311)

Balance at 31 March 2015

1,290
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Note 13 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Statement
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below,
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. The Chief Constable does not
hold funding so the assets are funded by Intra group funding from the Commissioner. The
Chief Constable does not have a capital financing requirement.

2014/15
£’000
Capital Financing Requirement
Capital investment
Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Total Capital Investment
Sources of Finance
Intra Group funding

0
4,396
207
4,603
(4,603)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

0

Note 14 Provisions
Provisions are shown on the Commissioner’s balance sheet. The provision for the year goes
through the Chief Constable’s CIES.
Liability Insurance Provision -This provision was established to meet liability claims which are
not covered by external insurers. The balance reflects the claims handlers’ estimate of claims
outstanding to 31 March 2014 plus an estimate for claims for 2014/15 based on the claims
history since 1995. A provision should be made for any liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
that have been incurred. The provision is for events that are more likely than not to occur. For
this reason a provision of £1.321m is required.
Vehicle Insurance Provision – This provision has been established to meet Third Party claims
which are not covered by external insurers. The balance reflects the claims handlers’ estimate
of claims outstanding to 31 March 2014 plus an estimate for claims for 2014/15 based on the
claims history since 2003. The provision is for events that are more likely than not to occur. For
this reason a provision of £0.265m is required.
Redundancy / Early Retirement Provision – This provision covers redundancy and early
retirement costs. A provision of £0.605m is required in 2014/15 to cover the costs in 2015/16.
Provisions

Liability
Vehicle
Insurance Insurance
£’000

Balance at 1 April 2014
Provision in Year
Expenditure in year
Transfer to/from Insurance Reserve
Unused amounts reversed
Balance at 31 March 2015

814
183
(185)
509
0
1,321

£’000

Total
Insurance
Provisions
£’000

286
203
(268)
44
0
265

1,100
386
(453)
553
0
1,586

Redundancy
Provision

Total
Provisions

£’000

£’000
0
605
0
0
0
605

1,100
991
(453)
553
0
2,191

Provisions are split between short term (£1.160m) and long term (£1.031m) in the
Commissioner’s balance sheet.

Note 15 Contingent liabilities / Contingent assets
Contingent liabilities/assets arise where the Chief Constable is aware of a possible obligation
that has arisen because of events prior to the Balance Sheet date, but where the existence will
only be confirmed by future events which are not in the Chief Constable’s control.
The Chief Constable has no contingent liabilities/assets at 31 March 2015.
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Note 16 Unusable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

31 March
2014
£’000

31 March
2015
£’000

Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Reserve
Pensions Reserve
Accumulated Absences Account

0
0
(1,602,656)
(1,204)

12
14,414
(1,933,664)
(1,326)

Total Unusable Reserves

(1,603,860)

(1,920,564)

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains arising from increases in the value of its Plant and
Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

disposed of and the gains are realised.

Revaluation Reserve
Transfer as at 1 April
Upward revaluation of assets
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment
losses not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current
assets not posted to the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services
Difference between fair value depreciation and
historical cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment
Account
Balance at 31 March

2014/15
£’000
13
0
0

0

(1)
0
(1)
12

Capital Adjustment Account
The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction and enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair
value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by
the Commissioner (intra group funding) as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and
enhancement.
The Movement on Reserves Statement details the source of all transactions posted to the
Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve.
Capital Adjustment Account
Transfer as at 1 April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Charges for depreciation and impairment of noncurrent assets

Revaluation losses on Plant & Equipment

Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Revenue Expenditure funded from capital under statute

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Adjusting amounts written out of revaluation Reserve
Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets consumed in the year
Intra Group Funding
Balance at 31 March
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£’000
13,619

(3,282)
0
(311)
0
(216)

1
(3,808)
4,603
14,414
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Pension Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions. The Chief Constable accounts for post employment benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet these costs. However,
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Chief Constable makes
employer’s contributions to pensions funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Chief
Constable has set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. Under Stage Two, Police
Staff were transferred to the Chief Constable, the 2014/15 figures reflect this change
Pensions Reserve

Balance as at 1 April
Transfer of Police Staff 1 April
Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and
liabilities
Effect of business Combinations
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31 March

2013/14
£’000
(1,610,550)

2014/15
£’000
(1,602,656)
(51,026)

77,720

(209,343)

0
(107,570)

(2,837)
(114,568)

37,744

46,766

(1,602,656)

(1,933,664)

Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the
General Reserve Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in
the year, eg annual leave, time off in lieu entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory
arrangements require that the impact on the General Reserve Balance is neutralised by
transfers to or from the Account. Under Stage Two, Police Staff were transferred to the Chief
Constable, the 2014/15 figures reflect this change
Accumulated Absences Account
Balance as at 1 April
Transfer of Police Staff 1 April

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end
of the preceding year
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on
an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
Balance at 31 March

2013/14
£’000
(1,837)

2014/15
£’000
(1,204)
(601)

1,837

1,805

(1,204)

(1,326)

633

479

(1,204)

(1,326)

Note 17 Off-payroll arrangements
On occasion Derbyshire Police engages certain individuals on an ad hoc basis; examples
would include ad hoc specific consultancy and specialist advice on complex investigations.
Derbyshire Police identifies individuals engaged through off-payroll arrangements, where the
daily rate exceeds £220 and the duration of the arrangement exceeds six months, and their
employment status. Where appropriate, assurances are sought that they are fulfilling their tax
obligations in relation to their work for Derbyshire Police.
In 2014/15 two individuals were engaged and payments were made of £40,500 and £27,600.
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Note 18 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The Chief Constable shall disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted. These are
detailed below


IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement – this standard introduces a new definition of ‘fair value’
measurement. Measurement is the process of determining the monetary amounts at which the
elements of the financial statements are to be recognised and carried in the Balance Sheet. The
revised standard will apply to the accounting period beginning 1 April 2015. This standard
affects ‘surplus properties’, ‘assets held for sale’ and ‘investment properties’.



Annual Improvements to IFRS’s including:
o
o
o



IFRS 1 International Financial Reporting standards - meaning of effective IFRSs;
IFRS 3 Business Combinations – scope of exceptions for joint ventures
IAS40 Investment Properties – clarifying the interrelationship of IFRS 3 Business
Combinations and IAS40 Investment Property when classifying property as investment
property or owner – occupied property.

IFRIC 21 Levies – covers the accounting to pay a levy if that liability is within the scope of
IAS37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or whose timing and amount is
certain.
The impact of these standards on the financial statements of the Chief Constable is either not
appropriate (IFRS 13 and IAS40) or not expected to be material.

Note 19 Authorisation of Accounts for issue
The 2014/15 Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the Director of Finance on 29
June 2015. All events after the balance sheet date until this date have been considered for
disclosure as events after the balance sheet date.

Note 20 Post Balance sheet events
There is a non material adjusting post balance sheet event which follows the Pension
Ombudsman’s decision on the 15th May 2015 in the case of Milne v Government Actuary’s
Department (GAD). This judgement confirmed that GAD had failed to identify its continuing
responsibility to calculate appropriate commutation factors between 1998 and 2006, affecting
both the Firefighters and Police Pension Schemes.
The consequence of this is that a number of retired Police Officers were underpaid. An initial
assessment by our pension scheme administrators have identified 390 Derbyshire police
officers who retired between 1st December 2001 and 30th November 2006 who are affected by
this ruling, the cost of the lump sums underpaid and interest is estimated to be £6.2m. This
cost is met by Derbyshire Police and then reimbursed by the Home Office through the pension
top up grant. No adjustments have been posted in the 2014/15 accounts on the basis that any
impact is not likely to be material but appropriate adjustments will be made in 2015/16.
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13,279

Net Expenditure

C Division
(75)

0

(75)

24,631

24,706

701

24,005

£'000

D Division
29,227

32,334

2,711

29,623

(3,107)

(2,735)

(372)

£'000

Operational
Support
10,777

11,769

805

10,964

(992)

(80)

(912)

£'000

16,368

16,728

1,808

14,920

(360)

(18)

(342)

£'000

Criminal
Justice
10,025

10,263

1,863

8,400

(238)

(30)

(208)

£'000

Other
Operational
11,452

20,738

8,875

11,863

(9,286)

(58)

(9,228)

£'000

18,217

18,949

11,528

7,421

(732)

(130)

(602)

£'000

Support
Costs

27,611

37,564

8,489

29,075

(9,953)

(9,076)

(877)

£'000

£'000

Chief Constable

Total financial resources consumed ar the request of the

Non Distributed Costs

Depreciation & Cost of using Commissioner's Assets

10,859

10,860

35

10,825

(1)

0

(1)

Contact
Management
£'000

Corporate
Costs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

177,197

84

4,667

172,446

197,207

37,216

159,991

(24,761)

(12,127)

(12,634)

£'000

Support costs are the net operating costs of the following department: Strategic Finance, Business Support, Human Resources, Information Services and Assets.
These costs are not formally recharged to the operational areas of the force. As well as the direct running costs of the departments, the figure for Other Services expenses include
certain costs that the departments control on behalf of the force. Examples are: running costs of the organisations's IT systems and premises costs for the organisation's headquarters

13,296

401

12,895

(17)

0

(17)

Total Expenses

Other service expenses

Employee expenses

Total Income

Government Grants

Fees, Charges and other service income

B Division
£'000

Crime
Support

The analysis below shows how the income and expenditure was attributable to specific operational areas

Funding
Income

Financial management information is provided to the Chief Constable primarily on a 'subjective' basis. This means expenditure is reported against expense categories such as
Employee costs, Premises costs, Transport costs, etc. A breakdown of 2014/15 income and expenditure on this basis is set out at Note 3.

Note 21
Resources of the Commissioner consumed at the request of the Chief Constable - Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions

TOTAL

POLICE PENSION FUND ACCOUNT

2013/14
£'000

2014/15
£'000
Contributions Receivable :

( 16,481)
( 777)
( 7,454)
( 1,434)

Employer
Employer - Ill Health Capital Credit
Employee - Existing Scheme
Employee - New Scheme

( 16,112)
( 1,054)
( 7,468)
( 1,638)

Transfers In :
( 707)

Transfer values receivable

( 490)

Benefits Payable :
34,566
9,678
207

Pensions
Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits
Lump sum death benefits

36,581
10,881
104

Payments to and on account of leavers :
6
780
18,384
( 18,384)

0

Refunds of contributions
Transfer values payable
Sub-total : Net amount payable for the year
Additional contribution from the Police and Crime Commissioner
to fund the deficit for the year
Net amount payable/receivable for the year

12
1,448
22,264
( 22,264)

0

Net Assets Statement

3,170

0
0
( 3,170)
0

Current assets
Pensions paid in advance
Current Liabilities
Unpaid pension benefits
Unpaid pension benefits - previous years
Surplus for year payable to Police and Crime Commissioner
Other current liabilities

0
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Notes to the Pension Fund Account
Note 1 Police Pensions Fund Account
The Police pension scheme is an unfunded single employer defined benefit scheme. This
means it provides pensions and other retirement benefits for police officers based on final
salaries but there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities. Two
schemes were in operation in 2014/15. The 1987 Police Pension Scheme is based on a
maximum pensionable service of 30 years, whilst the 2006 New Police Pension Scheme
(effective for police officers commencing from April 2006 onwards) is based on a maximum
pensionable service of 35 years.
Both the 1987 and 2006 Schemes provide pensions based on officers’ final salaries. From 6
April 2015 a new Police Officer pension scheme came into existence (the Police Pension
Scheme 2015) which will provide pensions based on career average salaries. All new officers
and existing officers not subject to protection arrangements will now be members of the 2015
scheme.
The funding arrangements for the Police Pension Scheme changed on 1 April 2006. Each
individual Commissioner is required by legislation to operate a Pension Fund Account and the
amounts that must be paid into and paid out of the Pension Fund are specified by regulation
(Police Pensions Regulations 2007 Statutory Instrument 1932/2007).
Before April 2006 each former Police Authority was responsible for paying the pensions of its
former officers on a “pay as you go” basis, from April 2006 there was a new employer’s
contribution instead (in 2014/15 this was 24.2% of pensionable salary) which is charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Employers contributions along with
officers contributions are paid into the pensions fund account from which pension payments are
made. Employees and employers contribution levels are set nationally by the Home Office. The
rates are subject to triennial revaluation by the Government Actuary’s Department. A revaluation of scheme liabilities was carried out during 2014/15 and the new rate from 1 April
2015 will be 21.3%.
Under the new arrangements the Pension Fund Account balances to nil at the year end by
either receiving a contribution by the Commissioner to or from the Police Fund. In 2014/15 a
contribution of £22.264m was received, this being equivalent to the pension top-up grant
received from the Home Office in 2014/15.
The pension fund is statutorily prevented from including interest on cashflows and
administration expenses in the pension fund, these expenses are borne by the Group
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Injury awards and ill health retirements are not part of the Pensions Fund Account and will
continue to be paid from the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Note 2 Pension Fund Liabilities
The Pension Fund’s financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and
other benefits after the period end.

Note 3 Accounting Policies
Accounting policies conform to those set out in the Statement of Accounts (page 14 to 21).

Chief Constable for Derbyshire Statement of Accounts 2014/15

46

Annual Governance Statement
1.

Introduction

1.1.

On 22 November 2012 responsibility for the governance of local policing in Derbyshire passed
from Derbyshire Police Authority to the elected Police and Crime Commissioner, Alan Charles.
The Chief Constable became a legal entity as a corporation sole, with the ability to employ staff
and hold assets.

1.2.

The Police and Crime Commissioner (Commissioner) and the Chief Constable have approved
and adopted a Derbyshire Joint Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA Framework: Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
Guidance note for Police. A copy of the Joint Code of Corporate Governance can be obtained
from the Chief Executive, Office for the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire,
Butterley Hall, Ripley, Derbyshire, DE5 3RS. It is also available on the Commissioner’s website
at
http://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Public-Information/Policies-Procedures-and-GuidanceDocuments.aspx

1.3.

This Annual Governance Statement explains how the Chief Constable has complied with the
joint code and also meets the requirements of Regulation 4[2] of the Accounts and Audit
(England) Regulations 2011 in relation to the review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control.

2.

Scope of responsibilities

2.1.

The Commissioner and the Chief Constable are responsible for ensuring that business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The
Commissioner and Chief Constable are responsible under the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act) for securing, inter alia, efficient and effective policing for
Derbyshire and to deliver value for money, being continuous improvement in the way in which
its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

2.2.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Chief Constable is responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of his affairs and facilitating the exercise of his
functions, which includes ensuring a sound system of internal control is maintained through the
year and that arrangements are in place for the management of risk.

2.3.

The Chief Constable for Derbyshire is responsible for maintaining the Queen’s peace and has
direction and control over the officers and staff operating within Derbyshire Constabulary. The
Chief Constable holds office under the Crown and is appointed by the Commissioner.

2.4.

The Chief Constable is accountable in law for the exercise of policing powers and to the
Commissioner for the delivery of efficient and effective policing, management of resources and
expenditure by Derbyshire Constabulary. At all times the Chief Constable, his officers and staff
remain operationally independent in the service of the public. In discharging his overall
responsibilities, the Chief Constable is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate
risk management processes, governance arrangements and ensuring that there is a sound
system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of these functions.
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2.5.

The Chief Constable appointed a professionally qualified Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for
Derbyshire Constabulary with effect from 22 November 2012. Under the Police Reform and
Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Chief Constable’s CFO has a personal fiduciary duty by
virtue of their appointment as the person responsible for the proper financial administration of
Derbyshire Constabulary. This includes requirements and formal powers to safeguard
lawfulness and propriety in expenditure (Section 114 of the Local Government Act 1988 as
amended by paragraph 188 of Schedule 16 to the Police Reform and Social responsibility Act
2011 (“2011 Act”)). The Chief Constable’s CFO is a key member of Derbyshire Constabulary’s
Chief Officer Team, helping it to develop and implement strategy and to resource and deliver
the Commissioner’s strategic objectives sustainably and in the public interest. The CFO is
actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all strategic business decisions of
the Chief Constable to ensure immediate and longer term implications, opportunities and risks
are fully considered. The CFO leads the promotion and delivery by the Chief Constable of good
financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all times and used appropriately,
economically, efficiently and effectively. The CFO ensures the finance function is resourced to
be fit for purpose and oversees that appropriate management accounting systems, functions
and internal controls are in place so that finances are kept under review on a regular basis.

2.6.

Under s.35 of the 2011 Act in exercising his functions the Chief Constable must ensure that
good value for money is obtained and this includes ensuring that persons under his direction
and control obtain good value for money in exercising their functions. Derbyshire Constabulary
(as a standalone entity) is legally required to produce an Annual Governance Statement. The
Statement helps the Commissioner to hold the Chief Constable to account for efficient and
effective policing. The Statement sits alongside the statutory accounts for the Chief Constable
and gives assurance to the Commissioner of Derbyshire Constabulary’s governance
arrangements. In addition, the Commissioner produces his own Governance Statement.

3.

The Governance Framework

3.1.

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which
the Chief Constable is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
engages with and leads its communities. It enables the Chief Constable to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the
delivery of appropriate services and value for money.

3.2.

The Constabulary’s governance framework was in place at the year-end 31st March 2015 and is
expected to be up to the date of the approval of the Statement of Accounts 2014/15.

3.3.

This statement has been prepared for the 2014/15 financial year to state Derbyshire
Constabulary’s current governance arrangements, to report on their effectiveness during the
year and to outline future actions planned to further enhance the arrangements. Derbyshire
Constabulary has adopted a joint code of corporate governance with the Commissioner, which
is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework: Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. This statement explains how the Chief Constable has
complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Section 4 of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations (England) 2011 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control. This
is underpinned by the governance framework as follows.

3.4.

A Joint Audit Risk and Assurance Committee (JARAC) is in place providing independent
assurance to both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable on the adequacy of:





Risk Management and the internal control framework of the Commissioner and Chief
Constable.
Governance arrangements including providing for value for money.
Support and review work of audit providing assurance on risk management, internal
controls and the annual accounts.
Appointment of internal audit & recommendations on external audit provision.
Scrutinise the annual accounts, especially the financial reporting process.
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4.

Corporate Governance Reporting and Processes

4.1.

Derbyshire Constabulary’s Chief Officer Team, led by the Chief Constable, is responsible for
ensuring Derbyshire Police has a corporate governance framework that reflects the principles
of openness, integrity, accountability and equality, and supports the delivery of quality policing.

4.2.

The governance framework enables Derbyshire Constabulary to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effective services, including achieving value for money. An annual review of
this framework takes place and appropriate improvements are made to ensure that it remains fit
for purpose. The Constabulary also carries out regular performance reviews, where each Chief
Officer holds the Division or Department to account for their performance.

4.3.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Constabulary’s policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

5. Organisational Structures and Processes
5.1.

Decision making structures are well established and are regularly reviewed to ensure they are
fit for purpose. The Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan sets out policing priorities and the
resourcing of those priorities. It reflects the areas of greatest importance locally, identified
through consultation with the public, or where performance improvement is required. Our plan
and our planning process are complementary to other partnership plans such as Community
Safety Partnerships, Local Criminal Justice Board and Local Strategic Partnerships.

5.2.

We will work closely with our partners in order to ensure consistency and alignment where
possible. The Chief Constable holds monthly Senior Officer Meetings, which are attended by
the Constabulary’s Chief Officer Team, Divisional Commanders and Heads of Departments.
These meetings are used to consult on and develop policy and ensure the engagement of the
senior managers of the organisation in change. Police and Crime Plan objectives are cascaded
throughout the Constabulary via Divisional and Departmental briefings and included as
appropriate in individual Performance Development Reviews (PDRs).

5.3.

The Commissioner approves an annual budget for the Constabulary activity which is aligned to
the Police and Crime Plan.

6.

The risk management process by which Derbyshire Constabulary identifies and
seeks to prevent and mitigate key risks

6.1.

An infrastructure has been established to support the effective management of risk and ensure
that information on risks is gathered and acted on in a consistent and efficient manner. The
Risk Management Group annually reviews the Risk Management Policy Statement and policy
guidance.

6.2.

The Constabulary recognises exposure to a wide and diverse range of risks and opportunities
in securing the delivery of priorities and objectives. All employees, volunteers, contractors and
partners are responsible for identifying and managing risks as part of their role and the Deputy
Chief Constable, as corporate sponsor, ensures that risk management is supported and
championed at Chief Officer Team level.
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6.3.

The Risk Management Policy provides clear guidance by which the Constabulary manages
uncertainty in a structured and effective way. The risk management framework and
infrastructure provide a solid foundation for risk management and standard for consistency
ensuring that information on risks is gathered and acted upon in an efficient manner.

6.4.

Risk management is fully embedded into the business planning process in order to identify the
threat, harm and risk facing the Constabulary in order to prioritise and identify areas which
need resourcing. The Constabulary maintains a hierarchy of risk registers for strategic,
operational, project and programme risks which are subject to scrutiny by the JARAC.

6.5.

The Risk Management Board, chaired by the Deputy Chief Constable, meets quarterly to
monitor changes to the Force risk profile and process. The Commissioner has a risk champion
who attends the meeting to maintain a strategic overview of risk management issues in the
Constabulary and report as appropriate to the JARAC.

7.

Business Continuity

7.1.

Derbyshire Constabulary has robust plans in place to ensure business continuity following
incidents. The Business Continuity Steering Group, comprising of relevant departmental
representatives assist the Business Continuity Manager in developing the business continuity
management process and respond to any business continuity crisis, as required.

8.

Insurance

8.1. The Commissioner continues to maintain, develop and renew its insurance programme in order
to minimise financial risks.
9.

Health and Safety

9.1.

Derbyshire Constabulary takes very seriously its responsibility for the health and safety of all
who attend the premises where the business of Derbyshire Constabulary is conducted or are
affected by our undertaking. The overall responsibility for health and safety matters rests with
the Chief Constable, who ensures that effective procedures and processes are in place.

10.

Reviewing and updating standing financial instructions, a scheme of delegation
and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions
are taken and the processes and controls required managing risks

10.1. The Financial Handbook is reviewed and updated regularly to ensure it remains fit for purpose.
Procedure notes and manuals are in place for all key systems and are also reviewed regularly.
A Scheme of Delegation sets out financial authorisation levels for police officers and staff
throughout the organisation. A Medium Term Financial Strategy is in place and is fully linked to
the organisation’s strategic objectives. At an operational level, rigorous and regular budget
monitoring takes place and a well-established fraud assurance programme is in place. Robust
management of income collection and debt recovery continues.

11.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

11.1. Processes for ensuring compliance with relevant law and regulations are well established and
work effectively. The Director of Finance and Business Support has statutory responsibilities in
this regard, and Internal Audit provides an assurance function and an annual independent
objective opinion on the control environment, comprising risk management, internal control and
governance.
11.2. All reports to Chief Officer Team and Project Boards together with all reports presented to the
Commissioner must consider legal implications.
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12.

Determining the conditions of employment and remuneration of officers and
staff, within appropriate national frameworks

12.1. Processes for determining the conditions of employment and remuneration of officers and staff
within appropriate national frameworks are well established. Modernisation of police pay
reports go to the Chief Officer Team detailing financial impacts, risks and progress to date.
12.2. Regular equal pay reviews are undertaken and there is a focus on maintaining market
competitive pay and benefits. The Constabulary operates an approved job evaluation scheme
based upon role profiles for each post. Regular strategic and local consultation is undertaken
with staff associations and trades unions.

13.

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to
their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

13.1. A Performance Development Review process is in place that identifies, manages and monitors
work related and personal development objectives for all Police Officers and Police Staff skills.
13.2. Training programmes are available through the regional learning and development structure,
the College of Policing, other professional bodies and external suppliers where appropriate.

14.

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging
open consultation

14.1. Derbyshire Constabulary is committed to ensuring our service meets the needs of the people of
Derbyshire. Due regard has been taken of emerging stakeholder processes such as the
Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan and the development of the ‘Over to You’ campaign.

15.

Whistleblowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the public and
handling citizen and other redress

15.1. A confidential reporting policy is in place to enable officers and staff to report any concerns
about malpractice or unlawful actions without fear of recrimination.
15.2. The Commissioner has made a commitment to putting things right and has a range of policies
in order to deal with public complaints. Complaints against the Chief Constable are dealt with
by the Commissioner; complaints against police officers or police staff who are under the
direction of the Chief Constable are dealt with by the Chief Constable.
15.3. Complaint handling in Derbyshire Constabulary is monitored in regular meetings between the
Head of Professional Standards Department and the Chief Executive of the OPCC or the
Independent Police Complaints Commissioner.

16.

Standards of Behaviour

16.1. Codes of conduct are in place for police officers and police staff. Relevant officers in the
Constabulary are also subject to professional codes of conduct for their particular profession.
For example the Chief Constable’s Chief Financial Officer is bound by the code of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), of which he is a member.
16.2. At least once a year, the Constabulary’s policy on professional standards is reviewed by the
Professional Standards Department and assessed based on its effectiveness and
discrepancies over that period. Derbyshire Constabulary expects all members of staff to always
be honest, truthful and sincere. We will uphold, administer and enforce all laws without bias or
prejudice in a just, consistent and reasonable manner.
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17.

Review of Effectiveness

17.1. The Chief Constable has responsibility for conducting a review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework within Derbyshire Constabulary at least annually. This review is
informed by the work of the Director of Finance and Business Services and managers within
Derbyshire Constabulary who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
governance environment. In preparing the Annual Governance Statement for 2014/15 the
Commissioner has placed reliance on this review and the Annual Governance Statement of
Derbyshire Constabulary.
17.2. Internal Audit provided an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
system of internal control and concluded that reasonable assurance can be given regarding the
overall internal control environment, with no areas of concern identified by Internal Audit during
2014/15.
17.3. In the Annual Audit Letter for 2013/14, the External Auditor reported that he had issued an
unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts and an unqualified conclusion on the
Constabulary’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in use of
resources. He also reported that he had not identified any significant weaknesses in the
Constabulary’s internal control arrangements.
17.4. We have been advised on the implications of the results of the review of the effectiveness of
the governance framework by JARAC and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit
for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. Having undertaken the review of
governance, the following areas have been identified that are considered important in
maintaining and strengthening the internal control environment. These areas will be tracked by
the Constabulary and the JARAC over the next 12 months through its Assurance Map to
ensure continuous improvement.
Governance Areas

Action

Following the creation of a Limited Liability
Partnership to manage the new Joint Police and
Fire Headquarters, governance arrangements will
need to be defined and fully embedded.
A number of key systems, which are critical to
delivering efficient, effective and economic
policing are due to be replaced. It is important
that robust programme management is in place
to ensure systems are implemented on time and
on budget and deliver expected benefits.
The Constabulary has embarked on a
programme of large-scale organisational change
in response to the continuing Government
austerity measures and to address changing risk
and threat. It is important that robust programme
management is in place to support change and to
ensure plans are delivered.

The Constabulary will work with the Office of the
Police and Crime Commissioner and Derbyshire
Fire and Rescue Service to ensure all necessary
processes and procedures are implemented.
The Constabulary has a robust Board structure in
place to support the implementation of critical
systems.

The Constabulary has in place tried and tested
processes and structures in place to deliver the
change programme, such as Priority Based
Budgeting and Moving Forward.
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DEFINITIONS
Accounting Period
The period of time covered by the accounts, normally a period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

Accruals
The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money
is received or paid.

Agency and Contracted Services
Services which are performed by, or for, another Authority or public body where the agent or contractor
is reimbursed for the cost of work done.

Budget
A statement of the Group’s (financial) plans for a specific period of time. A budget is prepared and
approved by the Commissioner prior to the start of the financial year. The Commissioner’s budget is
prepared on an out-turn basis which means that increases for pay and prices during the financial year
are contained within the total budget figure.

Capital Adjustment Account
The capital adjustment account reflects the difference between the cost of fixed assets consumed and
the capital financing set aside to pay for them. It provides a mechanism between the different rates at
which assets are depreciated under the Code and are financed through the capital controls system.

Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to the life or value of an
existing fixed asset.

Capital Financing Requirement
The Capital Financing Requirement represents capital expenditure financed by borrowing and not by
capital receipts, revenue contributions, capital grants or third party contributions at the time of spending.
It measures the Commissioner’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.

Chief Constable
The Chief Constable is a separate corporation sole which was established on 22 November 2012 under
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.

CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. This is the main professional body for
accountants working in the public services.

Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits
These are the amounts paid to officers when they retire, if they choose to have a lower pension.

Contingent Assets/Liabilities
A potential asset/liability at the balance sheet date when the accounts are submitted for approval. The
asset/liability will be included in the balance sheet if it can be estimated with reasonable accuracy
otherwise the asset/ liability will be disclosed as a note to the accounts.

Corporate and Democratic Core
This represents the costs of delivering public accountability and representation in policy making and
meeting our legal responsibilities.

Creditors
Amounts owed by the Commissioner for work done, goods received or services rendered which have
not been paid for by the end of the financial year.

Debtors
Sums of money due to the Commissioner for work done or services supplied but not received at the end
of the financial year.
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Defined Benefit Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme, with rules that usually define the benefits independently
of the contributions payable and where the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the
scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded.

Depreciation
The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of a fixed
asset, whether arising from use, the passing of time or obsolescence through technological or other
changes.

Fixed Assets - Intangible
Intangible assets are defined as ‘non financial fixed assets that do not have physical substance but are
identifiable and are controlled by the entity through custody or legal rights’ , for example, software
licences.

Formula Grant Distribution System
A mechanism by which Central Government determines how much Revenue Support Grant, Home
Office Police Grant and Business Rates each local authority should receive in a given year to provide a
common level of service. For the police service it is principally based on the resident and daytime
populations, plus relevant socio-economic characteristics, for the area covered by an authority.

Group
The term Group refers to the Commissioner and the Chief Constable.

Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below the amount shown on the balance sheet.

Leasing
A method of financing capital expenditure where a rental charge is paid for a specified period of time.
There are two main types of leasing arrangements:(a) finance leases which transfer all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed
asset to the lessee and such assets are included within the fixed assets in the
balance sheet.
(b) operating leases where the ownership of the asset remains with the leasing
company and the annual rental is charged direct to the revenue account.

Net Book Value
The amount at which Plant and Equipment are included in the balance sheet and being their historical
cost or current value, less the cumulative amounts charged for depreciation.

Non Distributed Costs
The cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early. These are overheads which are
not charged or apportioned to activities within the service expenditure analysis in the Operating Cost
Statement.

Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC), known as the ‘Commissioner’, is a separate corporation
sole which was established on 22 November 2012 under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility
Act 2011.

Provision
An amount set aside to provide for a liability which is likely to be incurred but the exact amount and the
date on which it will arise is uncertain.

Receipts and payments
Amounts actually paid or received in a given accounting period irrespective of the period for which they
are due.

Revaluation Reserve
This reserve records the net gain (if any) from revaluations.
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